TALLMADGE CHARTER TOWNSHIP ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS AUGUST 16, 2007

Charles Gilson called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.

Members present: Matthew Fenske, Mary Gavin, Clifford Bronkema and Charles Gilson

Member Absent: Shirley Bruin

The minutes of the July 19, 2007 meeting were approved as presented.

1. Brian Prangley is requesting a variance from Section 7.04(b) – Area Regulations, Front Yard for a house addition. This parcel number 70-14-01-300-015 is located at 0-437 Burton Street and is zoned Agricultural.

The meeting opened to the public.

Mr. Prangley explained his variance application. Dick and Mary Ver Sluis of 0-284 Burton are in support of the request. Dan Sawicki of 0-312 Burton and Dennis and Barbara Mouw of 0-427 Burton were also in favor of the request.

Meeting closed to the public.

Charles Gilson then spoke regarding the memo from Township Planner, Greg Ransford, which notes that the dwelling was constructed in approximately 1930, predating our Zoning Ordinance. Therefore no minimum setback was required at that time; consequently, the entire dwelling is within the required front yard setback of 75 feet. As a result, the applicant cannot construct any addition to the dwelling without a variance.

Mary Gavin moved, Clifford Bronkema supported, motion CARRIED to APPROVE the request based on the comments in regard to the Zoning Ordinance Standards for Review provided from Township Planner, Greg Ransford as follows:

Standards for Review. A variance shall not be granted unless one or more of the following standards are met:

1. Special conditions and circumstances exist which are unique to the land, structures, or buildings involved, and are not applicable to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district.

We believe the age of the dwelling, which predates our zoning ordinance, is very unique and highly unlikely to be applied to most other lands in the same district. Thus, the age of the dwelling itself is a special condition and circumstance.

2. The special conditions and circumstances on which the variance request is based do not result from the actions of the applicant.

We believe that the position of the dwelling, which is entirely within the front yard setback, creates special conditions and circumstances that were not the result of the applicant, as its location has existed for over 70 years.

3. Literal interpretation of this Ordinance would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other property owners in the same district under the terms of this Ordinance.

The literal interpretation of the Ordinance would prevent any future addition to the dwelling, which is a permitted activity to other property owners in the same district. Thus, the literal interpretation of the Ordinance would deprive the applicant of this right.

4. Granting the variance requested will not confer upon the applicant any special privilege that is denied by this Ordinance to other lands, structures, or buildings in the same district.

Granting the variance will not confer a special privilege to the applicant. Other properties in the same district are allowed the ability to construct additions to their dwelling.

5. The existence of nonconforming uses of neighboring lands, structures, or buildings in the same district; permitted or nonconforming uses of land, structures or buildings in other districts; and nonconforming structures shall not be considered grounds for the issuance of a variance.

We believe this request can be considered accordingly. No other property consideration is needed for the purpose of supporting the request. The entire dwelling is nonconforming on this parcel alone.

6. A variance granted shall be the minimum variance that will make possible a reasonable use of the land, buildings, or structure.

As presented, the applicant is merely seeking to be allowed to construct an addition to the existing dwelling, which is a right enjoyed by any residential property owner. The property owner has sufficient land area, in which no variance would be required to construct an addition to the home in the instance it was positioned further toward the rear (outside of the front yard setback).

However, given the age of the dwelling, which predated zoning, and given its location, which is entirely within the front yard setback and also predated zoning, we believe it is ultimately impossible to determine an appropriate minimum variance to provide for a reasonable addition to the dwelling when any addition will be located within the front yard setback. Thus, there is no difference in the variance effort no matter the variance applied when relief is needed for the structure regardless of the size of the addition. That is, no matter what part of the house the addition is attached, it requires a variance. Thus, it cannot be minimized.

7. The variance granted shall be in harmony with the intent of this Ordinance and will not be injurious to the neighborhood, and otherwise detrimental to the public interest.

We believe the variance would not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public interest and will be in harmony with the intent of this Ordinance.

Ayes: Matthew Fenske, Mary Gavin, Clifford Bronkema and Charles Gilson. Nays: none.

2. The Zoning Board of Appeals members would like plat maps.

Meeting Adjourned at 7:40 p.m. Respectfully Submitted, Denise L. Somers, Administrative Assistant